
MERTHYR TYDFIL COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
 

STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
MEETING 

 
5.00 PM MONDAY, 20TH MAY, 2013 

 

CONFERENCE ROOM 2, CIVIC CENTRE,  
MERTHYR TYDFIL 

 
This Agenda has been prepared by the Democratic Services Department. Any 
member of the public requiring information should contact the department on 
(01685) 725203 or email democratic@merthyr.gov.uk. 
 

A G E N D A 
 

1. Apologies for absence   

2. Declarations of Interest   

 Members of the Standards Committee are 
reminded of their personal responsibility to declare 
any personal and prejudicial interest in respect of 
matters contained in this agenda in accordance 
with the provisions of the Local Government Act 
2000, the Council’s Constitution and the Members 
Code of Conduct. 
  
 

 

3. Request for Dispensation  -  Local Authority 
Champions  

 

 To consider a report from the Chief Executive.   
 

(Pages 1 - 2) 

4. Standards Conference  -  19th April 2013   

 To receive a report from the Chief Executive.   (Pages 3 - 4) 



 

5. Local Dispute Resolution Procedure   

 To consider a report from the Chief Executive.   
 

(Pages 5 - 20) 

6. To consider Membership of the Standards 
Committee  

 

7. Any other item deemed urgent by the Chair   

 
 
 

  
COMPOSITION: Professor Sir Mansel Aylward (Chair)  
 R John Harvey (Vice-Chair) 

 
 Mike J Harbinson, Elizabeth Martin-Jones, Peter 

Young, Yvonne  Wood 
 
Councillors Clive Jones, Clive Tovey and Paul Brown 
 

 together with appropriate officers 
  

 
 



MERTHYR TYDFIL COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
Civic Centre, Castle Street, Merthyr Tydfil, CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000   www.merthyr.gov.uk 

 

STANDARDS REPORT 
 

Date Written 13th May 2013  

Report Author Carys Kennedy 

Service Area Legal and Democratic 

Committee Division Standards 

Committee Date 20th May 2013  

 

To: Chairman, Ladies and Gentlemen 

 

REQUEST FOR DISPENSATION - LOCAL AUTHORITY 

CHAMPIONS 
 

 

PURPOSE OF REPORT: 

 

To request dispensation to speak and vote on business being considered in 
Council for Members who have been appointed as Local Authority Champions 
 

 

 

1.0  BACKGROUND     

 

1.1 At the Annual General Meeting of the Council to be held on 15th May 
2013 Council will be asked to approve the appointment of a number of 
Members to the position of Champion for various specific areas of 
interest to promote and progress those interests. 

 
1.2 If a Member is appointed to such a role, in accordance with the 

provisions of the Members Code of Conduct he would have to declare 
an interest whenever business in connection with such a subject was 
then being discussed before Council and would not be able to speak or 
vote. This appears to be unhelpful as the Member will inevitably have 
important insight into the specific issue which may assist Council in 
addressing the business before it. 

 
1.3 In analogous circumstances Standards Committee has previously 

granted dispensation to speak and vote to Members who are appointed 
as Local Authority representatives to various external bodies or where 
they sit as LEA appointed School Governors. 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 3

Page 1



 

 
 
 
2.0 DECISION REQUIRED 

  
2.1  Standards committee are therefore asked to consider granting a 
 dispensation on the following terms:  
 
 All Councillors – that any Councillor who is nominated or appointed  as 
 the Authority Champion on a particular issue shall after declaring 
 their interest be allowed to  speak and vote on any matter relating to 
 that issue except where financial / funding issues are being discussed 
 where the Councillor will only have the right to speak (as granted by 
 the code) but not the right  to vote. 
 
3.0 RECOMMENDTION 

 

3.1 That the Committee grant the dispensation outlined above. 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

GARETH CHAPMAN 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE  

 

 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

   

   

 

Page 2



MERTHYR TYDFIL COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
Civic Centre, Castle Street, Merthyr Tydfil, CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000   www.merthyr.gov.uk 

 

STANDARDS REPORT 
 

Date Written 13th May 2013  

Report Author Carys Kennedy 

Service Area Legal and Democratic 

Committee Division Standards 

Committee Date 20th May 2013  

 

To: Chairman, Ladies and Gentlemen 

 

STANDARDS CONFERENCE  -  19
TH
 APRIL 2013 

 

 

PURPOSE OF REPORT: 

 

To advise Members of the matters discussed at the Standards Conference on 
19th April 2013. 
 

 

 

1.0  BACKGROUND     

 

1.1 Members will be aware that there is an annual Standards Conference 
which alternates between venues in the North and South of Wales. The 
Conference discusses important current issues for Standards 
Committees and offers an opportunity for Members to share 
experiences and good practice generally. 

 
1.2 The Conference this year took place at Venue Cymru Llandudno on 

19th April. All Members were offered the opportunity to attend although 
numbers were limited in light of the cost of travel and accommodation. 
In the event Mr John Harvey, Vice Chair of the Committee, and Carys 
Kennedy, Monitoring Officer attended. 

 
1.3 Amongst the topics discussed was the issue of Local Dispute 

Resolution procedures and Members will be aware that this is a matter 
which appears elsewhere on this agenda for their consideration. There 
were also workshops dealing with promoting Standards proactively, 
hearings and sanctions and registers of interests and dispensations. 
The Public Services Ombudsman for Wales also gave his annual 
report to Conference within which he detailed the nature of some of the 
many referrals that he receives and made clear his support for local 
dispute resolution. He was able to draw positive comparisons between 

 

Agenda Item 4

Page 3



the system for regulation and governance now operating in Wales as 
compared with that in England which is currently the subject of change. 

 
1.4 Overall the Conference was well attended and provided a good 

opportunity to share practice, particularly in the context of promoting 
proactively the work that the Committee does. This is something that 
Members may wish to consider, particularly in light of the need for us to 
review membership. Extra publicity may be helpful if we need to recruit 
new members. 

 
1.5 A decision about the venue for next year’s conference will be taken 

shortly and Members will be notified as soon as those details have 
been confirmed. 

 
1.6 Members are asked to note the contents of this report. 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

GARETH CHAPMAN 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE  

 

 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

   

   

 

Page 4



MERTHYR TYDFIL COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
Civic Centre, Castle Street, Merthyr Tydfil, CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000   www.merthyr.gov.uk 

 

STANDARDS REPORT 
 

Date Written 13th May 2013  

Report Author Carys Kennedy 

Service Area Legal and Democratic 

Committee Division Standards 

Committee Date 20th May 2013  

 

To: Chairman, Ladies and Gentlemen 

 

LOCAL DISPUTE RESOLUTION PROCEDURE 
 

 

PURPOSE OF REPORT: 

 

To introduce Members to the concept of a Local Dispute Resolution Procedure 
and consider recommending adoption of such procedure. 
 
 

 

 

1.0  BACKGROUND       

 

1.1  At the Standards Conference Wales held in October 2009 the Public 
 Services Ombudsman for Wales highlighted the fact that most 
 complaints to his office relate to the alleged failure by Members to 
 promote equality and respect. Often the issues raised were about 
 disputes between Members that arise in the course of interaction 
 between political opponents and in many of these instances the 
 Ombudsman did not go on to investigate such complaints under his 
 remit. 

 
1.2  The Ombudsman also stated that it was evident that the Chairs of 

 meetings have an important part to play in managing debate within 
 reasonable parameters and had suggested that Councils might wish to 
 offer extra support and training to enhance the skills and expertise of 
 the Chair. 

 
1.3  The Ombudsman has further expanded his comments since that time 

 and has actively encouraged the introduction of Local Dispute 
 Resolution Procedures to promote good standards of behaviour and 
 actively seek to resolve conduct issues at a local level which would 

 

Agenda Item 5

Page 5



 otherwise be referred to the Ombudsman who would then consider 
 them to be outside his remit. 

 
1.4  A number of Authorities now have in place Local Dispute Resolution 

 Procedures and report that they work very effectively in managing 
 disputes without the need to refer to the Ombudsman, although of 
 course referral to that Office is still possible and can take place at any 
 time should the Local Process identify that a matter is too complex or 
 significant to be handled in this way. 

 
1.5  At the Standards Conference Wales held in April 2013 the 

 Ombudsman in his address indicated that he is now wholly committed 
 to the Local Dispute Resolution process and that if Authorities do not 
 introduce them on a voluntary basis then he will seek to have 
 legislation enacted to impose such processes by law.  

 
2.0 DECISION REQUIRED 

  
2.1 I attach a protocol at Appendix A together with a draft of the Local 
 Dispute Resolution Procedure at Appendix B and members are 
 asked  to consider these documents and decide whether to refer them 
 to Council for adoption. 
 
2.2  If Members consider this to be an appropriate way to deal with these 

 complaints in future Council will need to adopt the Procedure and the 
 Standards Committee will then administer the procedure. 

 
2.3  The Procedure will be read in conjunction with the Members Code of 

 Conduct and does not detract from it. 
 

3.0  RECOMMENDATION 

 

3.1 That the attached draft Local Dispute Resolution Procedure and 
 protocol be referred to Council for adoption. 
 
 

 

GARETH CHAPMAN 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE  

 

 

 

 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

   

   

 

Page 6



E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\2\2\AI00019222\$jv1lsjyd.doc 

APPENDIX A 
 

PROTOCOL MERTHYR TYDFIL COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
1. Introduction 

  
1.1 The Local Government Act 2000 set up an Ethical Framework for 

Local Government introducing a Statutory Code of Conduct for 
Councillors and requiring the appointment of a Standards 
Committee to promote and maintain high standards of conduct.  
The Council and the Council’s Political Group Leaders are 
committed to promoting good standards of behaviour through this 
protocol.   

  
1.2 The Councillors’ Code of Conduct applies whenever you act, claim 

or give the impression you are acting in your official capacity and 
sets out in general terms aspects of conduct which Councillors 
must observe in carrying out official duties and which have direct 
relevance to relations between Councillors and their fellow 
Councillors and between Councillors and Officers. The Code also 
applies to you at any time if you conduct yourself in a manner 
which could reasonably be regarded as bringing your office or your 
authority into disrepute or if you use or attempt to use your position 
to gain an advantage for yourself or any other person or if you 
misuse your authority’s resources. 

  
1.3 This Protocol sets up a framework for good working relationships 

between Councillors and between Councillors and Officers as the 
best means of supporting the work of this Council. 

  
1.4 The Protocol seeks to set out not only current practices and 

conventions but also aims to promote clarity and certainty on 
dealing with other issues. 

  
1.5 The Protocol will also reflect the principles underlying the 

respective Codes of Conduct which apply to Councillors and 
Officers so that together they enhance and maintain the integrity of 
the Council and its public reputation. 

  

Page 7



E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\2\2\AI00019222\$jv1lsjyd.doc 

 

2. Councillor/Officer Relations  

  
2.1 Both Councillors and Officers serve the public but their roles and 

responsibilities differ.  Councillors represent their constituents and 
the wider public. Officers are responsible to the Council and must 
give advice to Councillors and the Council and carry out the 
Council’s work under the direction and control of the Council, the 
Cabinet and its Committees and sub-Committees. 

  
2.2 Councillors and Officers should treat each other with  respect at all 

times. 
  
2.3 Councillors can expect from Officers:- 

 
• Commitment to the Council as a whole and not only to one 
part 

• Respect and courtesy 
• The highest standards of integrity 
• Timely responses to enquiries and complaints 
• Impartial, professional advice 
• Regular up to date information that can be considered 
appropriate and relevant to their needs having regard to any 
individual responsibilities that they have and positions that 
they hold 

• Awareness of and sensitivity of the political environment 
• Appropriate confidentiality 
• Support for the role of Councillors within the arrangements 
made by the Council 

• That they will not use their relationship with Councillors to 
seek to advance their personal interests or to influence 
decisions improperly 

• Compliance with this Protocol at all times 
  
2.4 Officers can expect from Councillors:- 

 
• Respect and courtesy 
• The highest standards of integrity 
• An understanding of and support for respective roles, work 
loads and pressures 

• Leadership  
 

Page 8



E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\2\2\AI00019222\$jv1lsjyd.doc 

• Not to be subject to bullying or discrimination or to be put 
under undue pressure 

• That they will not use their relationship with officers to seek to 
advance their personal interests or those of others or to 
influence decisions improperly 

• Compliance with the Councillors’ Code of Conduct  
• Compliance with this Protocol at all times 

  
2.5 Both Councillors and Officers should take care not to give the 

impression that their distinct roles have blurred in any way.  
Councillors and Officers should therefore exercise caution in 
forming close, personal relationships with each other as the 
impression could be given that a particular Councillor or Officer 
may be able to secure advantageous treatment as a result of such 
a friendship. 

  
2.6 Any act against an individual Officer may be regarded as a form of 

bullying, intimidation or harassment if it is intended to influence 
unfairly that person’s actions, thoughts or deeds.  Whilst this 
Protocol cannot give guidance on every situation where such 
behaviour may occur, the Council is committed to promoting 
professional and courteous working relationships between 
individuals. 

  
2.7 All dealings between Councillors and Officers should observe 

reasonable standards of courtesy and neither party should seek to 
take advantage of their position. 

  
2.8 If there are any occasions where Councillors may have reason to 

complain about the conduct or performance of an Officer, all such 
complaints should be made personally, either to the Chief 
Executive, a member of the Green Team or Chief Officer as 
appropriate and in the case of the Chief Executive to the 
Monitoring Officer.  It is particularly important that such complaints 
are made in this way and are not aired in public such as at a 
meeting of the Council, to other external bodies or members of the 
public or in the Press. 

  
2.9 Similarly, if there is concern by an Officer in relation to a 

Councillor’s conduct, all such concerns should be brought 
personally by the relevant Chief Officer to the attention of the Chief 
Executive or the Monitoring Officer. 

Page 9



E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\2\2\AI00019222\$jv1lsjyd.doc 

  
2.10 All Councillors have the same right and obligations in their 

relationship with officers and should be treated equally.  However, 
Members of the Executive and Chairs of Committees have 
additional responsibilities and their relationship with officers may be 
different and more frequent and complex from those of members 
without those responsibilities and this is recognised in the 
expectations they are entitled to have of officers.  Also, where a 
political group forms an administration either alone or in 
partnership with another group or groups, it is recognised that the 
relationship with officers, particularly those at a senior level, will 
differ from that with opposition groups. 

  
3. Rights And Duties Of Individual Councillors 

  
3.1 All Councillors have the right:- 

 
• To inspect documents in the possession or control of the 
Council as set out in paragraphs 3.5.6 to 3.5.14 of the 
Council’s Constitution 

• To attend Committee, Sub Committee, Joint Committee, 
policy seminars and training sessions and such meetings as 
are necessary for the proper performance of that Councillor’s 
duties  

• To see accounts and make copies before the Annual Audit to 
inspect specific books, contracts, bills etc 

• To receive approved allowances 
  
3.2 There are also duties on individual Councillors to:- 

 
• Abide by the Councillors Code of Conduct and this Protocol 
• To disclose personal and prejudicial interests as set out in 
the Code of Conduct 

• To register the receipt of any gifts and hospitality at levels 
determined by the Council 

• To use all reasonable endeavours to attend meetings of the 
Council, its Committees, sub-Committees, other events and 
any outside bodies to which they have been appointed and to 
give apologies with reason where appropriate on those 
occasions where the Councillor is unable to attend 

• To attend and participate in opportunities for training and 
development including policy development 

Page 10



E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\2\2\AI00019222\$jv1lsjyd.doc 

• To take into account advice received from officers, especially 
advice from the Chief Executive, Chief Finance Officer, 
Monitoring Officer and Chief Legal Officer where they give it 
under their statutory duties. 

 
4. Confidentiality and the Press 

  
4.1 The rights for Councillors to inspect documents are set out in the 

Council’s Constitution. 
  
4.2 Any Council information provided to a Councillor in his/her capacity 

as a Councillor must only be used by the Councillor in connection 
with the proper performance of their duties.  Confidential 
information should not be disclosed to the media, discussed or 
released to any other persons.  Councillors should not disclose or 
use confidential information for the personal advantage of 
themselves or anyone known to them or to the disadvantage or the 
discredit of the Council or anyone else. 

  
4.3 Officers and Councillors have a responsibility to protect the 

Council’s reputation.  Leaking of confidential information including 
exempt Agenda items and minutes to the media or public criticism 
of individual Officers by Councillors or of individual Councillors by 
Officers is unacceptable.   There are clear requirements set out in 
the Councillors’ Code of Conduct confidentiality. 

  
4.4 Duties of confidentiality (under common law) arise when one 

person (the ‘confidant’ ) is provided with information by another 
(the ’confider’)  either orally or in writing in the expectation that the 
information will only be used or disclosed in accordance with the 
wishes of the confider. Examples of this duty are;- 

• if the relationship is inherently confidential e.g. lawyer and 
client 

• If the relationship is personal e.g. between colleagues in 
circumstances that suggest an expectation of confidentiality 

• If there is risk through identification e.g. whistle blowers 
  
4.5 The fact that information is not marked ’confidential’ does not 

necessarily prevent it from being confidential as this may be 
inferred from the subject matter and the surrounding 
circumstances. Confidentiality is unlikely to be established where 
the information is already known to a wide circle or is in the public 

Page 11



E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\2\2\AI00019222\$jv1lsjyd.doc 

domain. Wherever possible, officers and councillors should clearly 
indicate in correspondence or verbally when they expect 
information to remain confidential to avoid confusion. 

  
4.6 Whilst this Protocol is not aimed in any way at restricting a 

Councillor’s freedom of speech or right to contact the media, 
Councillors must distinguish between acceptable levels of political 
debate and unacceptable or derogatory personal comments or 
remarks when they comment on particular issues.  Comments to 
the Press should not challenge the integrity and good faith of other 
Councillors or be based on inaccurate information offered without 
due regard or attempt to establish the facts. 

  
5 Correspondence and E mails 

  
5.1 All correspondence, including Emails between an individual 

Councillor and an Officer should not normally be copied (by the 
Officer) to any other Councillor or other organisation, except to the 
Portfolio Member responsible for that area of work where 
appropriate.  Where it is necessary to copy the correspondence to 
another Councillor this should be made clear to the original 
Councillor, before any correspondence is sent. 

  
5.2 Correspondence including Emails between an individual Councillor 

and an Officer should not  be copied by the Councillor to the media 
or other organisations. Officers other than the Corporate 
Communications Team should not contact the Press.  

  

5.3 Local government should promote openness and transparency so 
information should not be disseminated secretly. Emails to and 
from councillors should not be blind copied, without declaring to 
whom the Email has been copied.   

  

5.4 Councillors who do not use the council’s IT equipment must 
nevertheless comply with the Council’s ICT security policy, and this 
Protocol. 

  

Page 12



E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\2\2\AI00019222\$jv1lsjyd.doc 

 

6. Involvement of Ward Councillors 

  
6.1 Much of what the Council does requires effective communication 

between everyone who may be affected.  Ward Councillors 
especially are concerned to know and be involved in matters that 
affect their Ward.  Where Councillors raise specific concerns which 
may involve ward level issues other than their own, it is established 
that the Ward Councillor/s is/are to be notified. 

  
7. Attendance by Members at Meetings Arranged by Officers 

  
7.1 Councillors are free to request a meeting with Officers to discuss 

aspects of the Council’s business, bearing in mind the reasonable 
calls of their other duties. 

  
7.2 Officers will arrange many meetings with colleagues or third parties 

to discharge the routine business of the Council or to action its 
decisions.  The convention is that Councillors will not be present at 
these meetings but will be advised either informally or through 
reports to Cabinet and Committees of any relevant discussions 
and/or outcomes.  There may be occasions where a Councillor 
may be invited to attend a meeting by the appropriate Officer or by 
a resolution of a Committee. 

  
7.3 Councillors may request meetings with Officers and bring third 

parties to that meeting by agreement with officers.   
  
8. Breaches of the Protocol 

  
8.1 Allegations by an Officer of a specific breach of this Protocol by a 

Councillor should be made to the Chief Executive It is hoped that 
any potential problems may be resolved by early discussion 
between the Councillors involved and the Chief Executive.  If this 
proves impossible the Chief Executive may, in consultation with the 
Chair of the Standards Committee refer the matter to the 
Standards Committee and invite them to reach a view as to 
whether the Protocol has been breached. The view of the  
Standards Committee will be reported at a Council meeting. The  
Standards Committee will follow the Stage Three of the Procedure 
attached. 

  

Page 13



E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\2\2\AI00019222\$jv1lsjyd.doc 

8.2 The Chief Executive will decide whether disciplinary procedures 
are appropriate in the case of alleged breach of this Protocol by 
Officers.   

  
8.3 Allegations by a Councillor of a specific breach of this protocol by 

another Councillor will be dealt with in accordance with the 
Procedure attached. 

  
9. Training and Briefing 

  
9.1 Joint training and briefings for the operation of this Protocol for 

Councillors and Officers will be arranged as required and overseen 
by the  Standards Committee. 

  
10. Advice 

  
10.1 The Council’s Monitoring Officer and Deputy Monitoring Officer will 

give advice on the interpretation and operation of this Protocol. 
  
11. Review 

  
11.1 The operation of this Protocol will be regularly monitored and 

reviewed by the Standards Committee with particular reference to 
findings on breaches, and recommendations made to Council for 
amendment where necessary. 

  
 14th May 2013 

    
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 14



E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\2\2\AI00019222\$aulphcbg.doc 

APPENDIX B 
 

PROCEDURE FOR DEALING WITH ALLEGATIONS THAT A 
COUNCILLOR HAS BREACHED THE LOCAL PROTOCOL FOR 
MERTHYR TYDFIL COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL. 
 
 
1. Introduction 

  
1.1 The Local Protocol for Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council 

aims to promote good co-operation between Councillors and 
Officers and exemplary standards of behaviour thus allowing the 
Council to carry out its duties efficiently and professionally. 

  
1.2 Legislation sets out a statutory regime whereby complaints for 

breaches of the Councillors’ Code of Conduct are referred to the 
Public Services Ombudsman for Wales (the Ombudsman). 

  
1.3 The Ombudsman has the discretion to decide whether allegations 

of breaches of the Councillors’ Code of Conduct will be 
investigated. Therefore if there are reasonable grounds which 
indicate a possible breach of the Code, the matter should be 
referred to the Ombudsman. This Protocol is designed to deal 
effectively with those complaints which are not suitable for 
reference to the Ombudsman or which would benefit from a local 
determination. 

  
1.4 It is important that any allegations made under this protocol are 

dealt with quickly and effectively. 
  
1.5 The purpose of this procedure is to introduce a simple and clear 

method of dealing with such allegations. 
  
2. Complaints involving officers 

  
2.1 The Chief Executive will deal with all complaints by officers 

against Councillors and complaints by Councillors against officers 
under this Protocol as set out in paragraphs 8.1 and 8.2 of the 
Protocol. The Chief Executive retains the discretion to refer the 
matter to the Ombudsman or with the consent of the Chair, to the  
Standards Committee under Stage Three of the Procedure below. 

  

Page 15



E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\2\2\AI00019222\$aulphcbg.doc 

2.2 If any complaint by an officer against a Councillor is referred to 
the Standards Committee (the Committee), the procedure as set 
out in Stage Three below will be followed. 

  
3. Complaints against Councillors by other Councillors 

  
3.1 Complaints against Councillors by other Councillor/s will be dealt 

with under the following three stage procedure. 
  
4. Procedure 

  
4.1 Stage One of the Procedure: Making the complaint 

 
(i)  Any Councillor who wishes to submit an allegation should 

send the complaint to the Monitoring Officer.  Following receipt 
of the complaint the Monitoring Officer will advise whether the 
allegation falls within this Protocol or whether the complainant 
should consider referral to the Ombudsman as an allegation of 
breach of the Councillors’ Code of Conduct.  The Monitoring 
Officer may choose not to deal with the allegation at this stage 
in order be able to advise the Committee later in the process, 
in which case the Deputy Monitoring Officer or a Legal Officer 
will advise the complainant. 

 
(ii) If a local resolution is sought under this Protocol then all 

parties concerned must agree not to refer the matter to the 
Public Services Ombudsman for Wales, failing which this 
Protocol cannot be used.  If there is a formal referral to the 
Ombudsman then legislation and regulations set out how the 
Ombudsman may investigate that matter and if appropriate 
refer the result of any investigation to the Standards 
Committee so that the Committee may determine that 
complaint.  

 
(iii) If following the first stage the Councillor wishes to proceed 

with the allegation under this Protocol, the matter may be 
referred either to an informal resolution under Stage Two or to 
a hearing by the Committee under Stage Three. 

  

Page 16



E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\2\2\AI00019222\$aulphcbg.doc 

 

4.2 Stage Two of the Procedure: Informal resolution 
 
At Stage Two, the complaint (if both parties agree) will be referred 
to the current Leaders of the Political Groups and the Mayor to 
contact the Member against whom the complaint is made and, if 
appropriate, to try and resolve the matter informally.   
 

(i) The Leaders of the Political Groups and the Mayor may 
decline to undertake Stage Two and with the consent of 
the Chair of the Committee refer it immediately to Stage 
Three. 

 
(ii) If necessary, the Leaders of the Political Groups and the 

Mayor can call on the Monitoring Officer, the Deputy 
Monitoring Officer or Legal Officer for advice and 
assistance. On occasions, it may be appropriate for the 
Monitoring Officer not to be involved in order to be able 
to advise on the matter at a later stage. 

  
4.3 Stage Three of the Procedure: Hearing before the Standards 

Committee 
 

(i) If either party remains dissatisfied after Stage 2, then 
with the consent of the Chair of the Committee, the third 
stage of the hearing is before the Standards Committee.   
The Councillor making the complaint will be asked to 
submit the substance of the complaint in writing, and the 
Councillor who is the subject of that complaint will be 
asked for a written response.  These papers, together 
with any additional written evidence that is submitted by 
either side will be distributed to the members of the 
Committee. 

 
(ii) Both the Councillor making the complaint and the 

Councillor complained against have the right to appear 
before the Committee and to submit evidence from 
witnesses.  Both will have the right to representation or to 
have a colleague present.  The Council will not meet the 
cost of representations. 

 
(iii) If either side wishes not to be present or fails to attend, 

the hearing may be held in their absence. 

Page 17



E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\2\2\AI00019222\$aulphcbg.doc 

 
(iv) After the evidence has been heard, both sides and their 

representatives will be asked to leave the Chamber and 
the Committee will come to a conclusion on the 
allegation.  The Monitoring Officer will be available to 
advise the Committee.   

 
(v) The Committee can come to one of three conclusions, 

namely:- 
 

(a) That there is no basis to the complaint. 
 

(b) That there is a basis to the complaint but that no 
further action is required. 

 
(c) That there is a basis to the Complaint and that the 

Councillor should be censured. 
 

The conclusion by the Committee will be reported to Council. In 
addition, the Committee can make recommendations to the 
Council regarding changes to any procedures or taking any 
further action. 

  
4.4 Council may resolve to:-  

 
(a) Accept the decision of the Committee or 

 
(b) Take no further action. 

  
5. Other Matters 
  
5.1 (i) Publicity will not be given to the names of the Councillors 

involved unless it is decided to uphold the complaint and 
that the Councillor should be censured.  The hearing 
before the Committee will be exempt. 

 
(ii) Stages Two and Three do not have to be followed 

sequentially.  Although it is possible for a Councillor who 
remains dissatisfied after the intervention of the Leaders 
of the Political Groups and the Mayor to ask for the 
matter to be referred to a hearing before the Committee, 
it is also possible for a matter to proceed directly to the 
Committee without being first submitted to the Stage 2 

Page 18



E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\2\2\AI00019222\$aulphcbg.doc 

process, provided the Chair of the Standards Committee 
agrees. 

 
(iii) The aim of this Procedure is to try and resolve 

complaints regarding Councillors quickly and effectively.  
Nothing in this procedure prevents an officer or 
Councillor from submitting a complaint to the 
Ombudsman that a Councillor has breached the 
Councillors’ Code of Conduct at any time before Stages 
Two (in the case of a Councillor) or Three (in the case of 
either an officer or a Councillor) of the Procedure is 
engaged.  

 
(iv) This Protocol is not designed for use by members of the 

Public.  If there is a complaint by a member of the public 
against officer conduct or Councillor conduct, then that 
should follow normal processes, either through a 
complaint to the Chief Executive or relevant Chief Officer 
in respect of an officer or to the Monitoring Officer and/or 
the Ombudsman in respect of a Councillor. 

  
 

Page 19



Page 20

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Request for Dispensation  -  Local Authority Champions
	4 Standards Conference  -  19th April 2013
	5 Local Dispute Resolution Procedure
	Appendix A
	Appendix B


